ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE

February 21, 2012
3:37 p.m

VMEVMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald 4 son, Chair
Senat or Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Linda Menard
Senator Johnny Ellis
VEVBERS ABSENT

Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 147

"An Act relating to an Al aska Water and Sewer Task Force

providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 147

SHORT TI TLE: WATER AND SEWER TASK FORCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) KOOKESH

01/ 17/ 12 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 6/ 12
01/ 17/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 12 (S) CRA, FIN

W TNESS REG STER

DOROTHY SHOCKLEY, St aff

Senator Al bert Kookesh

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 147.

BILL GRI FFI TH, Manager

Facility Prograns

Departnent of Environnental Conservation
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 147.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 21,

and

2012



MARY SCHLOSSER, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 147.

JOY HUNI NGTON, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 147.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:37:25 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 3:37 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Kookesh, Menard and Chair
a son.

SB 147- WATER AND SEWER TASK FORCE

3:37:37 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced the consi derati on of SB 147.

3:38: 06 PM

DOROTHY SHOCKLEY, staff for Senator Kookesh, Alaska State
Legislature, said the bill would create a nine nenber Al aska

Wat er and Sewer Task Force (WSTF) to address the estimted 6, 000
homes in the state without "Safe Water and Sanitation Systens"
(SWSS). She said the state had only nmet the required anmount of
mat ching federal funds at 19 to 25 percent for rural projects.
She said nost noney had gone into facility wupgrades and
mai nt enance rather than new projects.

She said WSTF would establish an accurate nunber of hones
w thout SWSS; establish a spectrum of need and prioritize;
explore alternative self-sustaining SWSS; research other artic
nations' SWSS; coordinate funding in agencies that provide
services and oversee SWSS construction projects; investigate and
access past SWSS projects and service providers; neet with state
and federal agencies and departnents on regul ations and funding
requi renents; and funding requirenents to streanmine projects.
She said WSTF would be a nine nenber task force; two from the
Senat e, one appointed from the Bush Caucus, two from the House,
one from the public with civil engineering credentials, one
representative from an appropriate federal agency, one
representative from the appropriate state agency and two rura
Al aska residents.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 21, 2012



3:40: 00 PM
SENATOR ELLI S j oi ned the neeti ng.

3:41: 23 PM

M5 SHOCKLEY said WSTF would neet in four rural comunities and
attend the Al aska Federation of Natives (AFN) Convention in
Anchorage. She said a report would be submtted by January, 2013
to the legislature.

SENATOR MENARD asked if potential WSTF candidates had shown
interest. She noted that fornmer U S. Senator Ted Stevens had
supported the sane cause. She stated her support for WSTF.

M5 SHOCKLEY answered that communities and organizations have
shown support. She said engineers have stated a wllingness to
hel p.

SENATOR MENARD asked for additional infornmation on the fiscal
not e.

3:44: 30 PM

M5 SHOCKLEY answered that the fiscal note was $107,000 for the
five task force trips and a part tine admnistrator. She said
the Departnent of Environnental Conservation (DEC) subnmitted a
fiscal note for $6,300 to acconpany WSTF.

SENATOR MENARD asked to clarify that a part-tinme person would be
hired to assist WSTF.

M5 SHOCKLEY answered yes.

CHAIR OLSON asked how the 6,000 households were geographically
di stributed throughout the state.

M5 SHOCKLEY answered that the distribution regions were, Yukon
Kuskokwi m 32 percent, Interior: 19 percent, South Central: 14
percent, Norton Sound: 10 percent, Kenai/Prince WIIliam Sound:
10 percent and OQher: 15 percent. She said within the "Q her
Region," Artic Slope: 9 percent, Northwest Arctic: 32 percent,
Sout heast: 20 percent, Bristol Bay: 20 percent, Copper River: 13
percent and Al eutian Pribilof: 6 percent.

3:48: 26 PM

M5 SHOCKLEY said the regional distribution of First Service
Needs (FSN) for SWSS service to homes not previously served,
Yukon Kuskokwi m 69 percent, Norton Sound: 14 percent, Interior:

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 21, 2012



10 percent, Northwest Arctic: 6 percent. She said FSN should be
targeted with a list of projects and mai nt enance requirenents.

CHAI R OLSON asked what specific health concerns were associated
wi th poor SWSS in rural Al aska.

M5 SHOCKLEY answered that one issue was respiratory problens.

CHAIR COLSON commented that hepatitis was his major concern due
to viral transm ssion.

M5 SHOCKLEY said a rural cormmunity had a breakout of
Met hicillin-resistant Staphyl ococcus Aureus (MRSA).

3:50: 57 PM
CHAIR OLSON said projects were getting nore expensive due to
di m ni shing federal funds and inaccessibility. He asked if there
were alternative solutions for SWSS projects in villages that
need hel p.

M5 SHOCKLEY answered that anything was possible and other arctic
countries had done it.

3:52:04 PM

SENATOR KOOKESH commented that the U S. government was going to
repair all of the lraq's SWES. He said the priority should be on
the 6,000 Al askan honmes and the rest of the US. rural famlies
that do not have proper SWSS. He said the WSTF would not solve
all of the problens, but reducing 50 percent of the hones
w thout SW5SS would be a great acconplishnment. He said having a
list of priorities from WSTF for |egislatures was the intent of
the bill.

SENATOR MENARD asked about the WSTF sunset in 2013.

M5. SHOCKLEY answered that a report would be provided in 2013
and there was no sunset. She said she was hopeful that WSTF
woul d continue until all homes in Al aska had adequate SWSS.

SENATOR MENARD commented on her concern that WSTF did not have
enough time to provide a report to the |egislature.

3:54:41 PM

CHAI R OLSON conmmented that the WSTF report would be done in |ess
than a year. He asked what the WSTF report would contain and how
the state woul d be invol ved.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 21, 2012



M5 SHOCKLEY answered that the WSTF report would provide details
on needs and priorities for SWSS.

3:56:29 PM

SENATOR KOCOKESH comented that forner Governor Know es stated
that the "honey bucket" should be placed in a nuseum He noted
that the Village Public Safety O ficers (VPSO program benefited
from inplementing a task force. He stated that the $107,000
fiscal note was a m nuscul e appropriation.

SENATOR MENARD noted that Senator Kookesh served as an AFN board
nmenber. She asked what the AFN priorities were regardi ng SWSS.

SENATOR KOOKESH answered that SW5S was a top priority and noted
t hat AFN woul d back WSTF.

CHAIR OLSON asked about technological advances in SWSS that
coul d benefit rural Al aska.

3:59: 57 PM

BILL GRIFFITH, Facility Prograns Manager, Depart ment of
Envi ronnent al Conservation, Anchorage, said |less than 25 percent
of rural households had SWSS 30 years ago and 75 percent today.
He said DEC was now | ooking at the nost challenging communities
to serve in a sustainable way.

CHAIR OLSON asked how much of the rural budget for SWSS was
federally funded and what percentage of state funds went to
|arger nunicipalities rather than rural conmunities.

MR CGRIFFITH said 75 percent of the SW5S was federally funded
with a required match of 25 percent from the state. He said
federal funds have declined over the past seven years and state
funds have declined proportionally. He said the state provided
100 percent grant match funding for larger municipalities and
annual appropriations were independent of federal funding. He
noted that communities had to provide a match for state funding
and the amount varied based on the popul ation of the comunity.

4:03: 44 PM

CHAIR OLSON said the U'S. Departnment of Agriculture (USDA)
awarded $23.6 mllion for SWSS. He asked if the USDA funds found
their way to rural SWSS projects.

MR, GRIFFITH answered yes. He said the USDA noney was part of
the federal noney that required the state to natch.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 21, 2012



4:04: 38 PM
M5. SHOCKLEY commented that it was not inpossible to get SWSS to
all rural communities.

MARY SCHLOSSER, representing herself, Juneau, said the federa
governnent had spent over $2.6 billion for Iraq's SWSS. She
referenced her honme village was still using honey buckets.

CHAIR OLSON commented that additional generations should not
have to continue using honey buckets.

4:08:22 PM

JOY HUNI NGTON, representing herself, said she grew up in
villages that did not have SW5S. She said Al aska had not kept up
with other countries and voiced her concern regarding health
i ssues. She said she was exposed to MRSA during her travels to
rural Al aska. She said a lack of SWSS was | eading to rural out-
m grati on and advocat ed WSTF.

4:12:55 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked about her MRSA experi ence.

M5. HUNI NGTON answered that MRSA was a deadly staph infection.
[SB 147 was held in commttee.]

4:15:48 PM

There being no further business to come before the commttee

Chair dson adjourned the Senate Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Conmttee at 4:15 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 21, 2012



